
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
November 5, 2012 

6:15 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular meeting  

Municipal Meeting Room 
Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)  
 
Roll Call  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
(b) Election Day reminder 
 
(c) Brunswick designated as a Bicycle Friendly Community at the Bronze level 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
112. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for Special 

Amusement License, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Special Amusement 
AKI, INC 
D/B/A: AKI, INC       Kevin Savage 
94 Maine Street 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
113. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding proposed zoning ordinance 

text and map amendments requested by Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 
for Brunswick Landing, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   

HEARING/ACTION 
 



2 
 

114. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding the “Resolution Amending 
the 2012-13 Budget Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the 
General Fund to Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II,” and 
will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
HEARING/ACTION 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
115. The Town Council will consider conditionally accepting Columbia Avenue from 

Moore Avenue to the Town’s section of Columbia Avenue, about 2,300 feet, as a 
Town Road, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   

ACTION 
 
116. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for November 19, 2012, to 

adopt an ordinance to exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on vehicles, 
and will take any appropriate action. (Chair King and Councilor Watson) 

ACTION 
 

117. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for November 19, 2012, on 
amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to be enacted on an 
emergency and regular basis, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 

118. The Town Council will discuss the MMA Legislative Policy Committee 
recommendations for legislation for the upcoming session, and will determine if any 
Council action is necessary.  (Councilor Pols) 

DISCUSSION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of October 15, 2012 
(b) Approval of Games of Chance and Beano for the Knights of Columbia Council 

1947 
 

Executive session –Economic development per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) and consultation 
with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 

(TDD 725-5521) 
 

  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

November 5, 2012 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)  
 

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to go in Executive session to discuss a Personnel matter relative to the Town 
Manager’s evaluation per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A).  

 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they 

are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(b) Election Day reminder:  This item is to remind voters that all voting on Election Day, 

Tuesday, November 6th, is at Brunswick Junior High School.  The polls will be open 
from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(c) Brunswick designated as a Bicycle Friendly Community at the Bronze level:  The 

Town received this award from the League of American Bicyclists; this designation is 
good for four years.  A copy of the letter from the organization is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
112. This item is the required public hearing on a renewal application for Special 

Amusement License for AKI, INC, located at 94 Maine Street.  They are requesting 
live bands and DJ’s for the downstairs dance floor and open space near the bar.  
Copies of the public hearing notice and their application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve the Special Amusement License for AKI, INC, located at 94 Maine 
Street. 

 
113. This item is the required public hearing regarding Brunswick Landing zoning 

amendments.  At the request of the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority, the 
Brunswick Planning Board reviewed proposed zoning ordinance text and map 
amendments for Brunswick Landing.  The Planning Board held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposal to unanimously recommend the proposed amendments as 



4 
 

outlined in a memo from the Planning Department.   Copies of the memo, proposed 
map and table are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt Zoning Ordinance text and map amendments requested by Midcoast 
Regional Redevelopment Authority for Brunswick Landing. 

 
114. This item is the required public hearing on the “Resolution Amending the 2012-13 

Budget Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund to 
Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II.”  Phase I of this 
project was completed as of June 12, 2012, and the School Department sought 
proposals for the second phase of the planning process, with an agreement made with 
PDT Architects.  Copies of a memo from John Eldridge, a draft resolution, and a letter 
from PDT laying out the scope of work are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
There is no action at this meeting since the Charter requires at least ten days from the 
date of the public hearing to amend the budget.  This item will come back to the 
Council for action at the November 15th meeting. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
115. This item is for the Council to consider accepting a section of Columbia Avenue that 

was formerly part of the navy housing and is currently owned by Affordable Midcoast 
Housing, which has been making the necessary upgrades to the roads as required 
under the Town Road Acceptance ordinance.  The Town is recommending the Council 
accept the property on a conditional basis pending final approval by the Town 
Engineer since there are a few minor outstanding issues that should be resolved.  
Copies of a memo from Manager Brown and a map of the area are included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to accept Columbia Avenue from Moore Avenue to the Town’s section of 
Columbia Avenue, about 2,300 feet, as a Town Road. 

 
116. Chair King and Councilor Watson are sponsoring this item to set a public hearing on 

an ordinance that would exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on 
vehicles while on active duty.  In 2011 the Legislature passed a law that authorizes 
local municipalities to adopt an ordinance that exempts active duty military personnel 
from paying excise tax on motor vehicles.  The possible impact on the town based on 
current numbers would be less than $5,000.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown, 
the draft ordinance, and state law reference are included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for November 19, 2012, to adopt an ordinance to 
exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on vehicles. 

  



5 
 

 
117. The item is to set a public hearing for November 19, 2012, to change the current 

General Assistance maximums, and staff is requesting that the Council advertise this 
hearing on an emergency and regular basis in order to be enacted immediately after 
the public hearing.  This is the annual adoption of the limits, with changes only in the 
Housing amounts.  Copies of a memo and supporting materials are included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for November 19, 2012, on amendments to the General 
Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to be enacted on an emergency and regular basis. 

 
118. Councilor Pols is providing the attached Maine Municipal Association Legislative 

Policy Committee ( LPC) position papers for the Council to review and to provide 
feedback as appropriate to assist Councilor Pols to represent Brunswick’s position at 
the November 8 meeting of the LPC. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
This is a discussion item. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of October 15, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included 
in your packet. 

(b) Approval of Games of Chance and Beano for the Knights of Columbia Council 
1947:  This is their semi-annual request for games of chance and beano.  Copies of 
their state applications are included in you packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Executive session –Economic development per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) and consultation 
with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to go into executive session to discuss economic development per M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(C) and for consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
ITEM 112 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









 
 

 
ITEM 113 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



O:\Word\Public hearings - Council\2012 public hearings\nov 5 2012 school study and mrra zoning.docx 

 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
THE BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL will hold public hearings at their regular 
meeting on Monday, November 5, 2012, 7:00 p.m. in the Municipal Meeting Room 
(Room 217), Brunswick Station, 16 Station Avenue, to receive public comment on the 
following amendments: 
 
Item 1. The Town Council will hear public comments on proposed zoning ordinance text 

and map amendments requested by Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 
for Brunswick Landing. 

 
Item 2. The Town Council will hear public comments on a “Resolution Amending the 

2012-13 Budget Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the 
General Fund to Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II.”  

 
For more information contact the Town Manager’s office at 725-6659. 
 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION PLEASE CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 
725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 

   Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Brunswick, Maine 

 
 
Times Record – October 18, 2012 

 



 
October 10, 2012  
 
To:  Brunswick Town Council 
  Gary Brown, Town Manager 
From:  Anna Breinich, AICP 
Subject: Request to schedule public hearing:  Proposed zoning ordinance text and map 

amendments requested by Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority for 
Brunswick Landing.  

 
At the request of the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority, the Brunswick Planning 
Board reviewed proposed zoning ordinance text and map amendments for Brunswick Landing.  
Briefly, the amendments requested were as follows: 
 

1. Rezone a portion of the R-R (Residential) subdistrict to R-CMU (Community Mixed Use) 
subdistrict (see attached map), approximately 27 acres.   

2. Provide for interim uses in the R-PO (Professional-Office) subdistrict.   
3. Allow for a new use in the R-CMU subdistrict, Light Industrial Business, and provide definition 

for said use.   
4. Allow for a new use in all subdistricts excluding R-R, Special Event Use, and provide definition 

for said use.   
5. Amend definitions of “Industry Classifications I and II” in a portion of the R-AR (Aviation-

Related) subdistrict.  Staff response:  Table of uses was previously amended to allow for non-
aviation related Industry Class I and II uses on January 24, 2011. 

 
Upon review and discussion, the Planning Board authorized and held a public hearing on October 9, 2012 
to consider and make recommendation to Town Council regarding the following zoning ordinance text 
and BNAS subdistrict zoning map amendments with staff comments included: 
 

1. Rezone a portion of the R-R (Residential) subdistrict to R-CMU (Community Mixed Use) 
subdistrict, approximately 27 acres, per attached map.   
 
Staff Comment:  This request is for an area acquired by MRRA as part of the land transaction 
with Affordable Midcoast Housing, LLC and abuts lands presently zoned R-CMU.   

 
2. Rezone a portion of the R-CMU subdistrict to R-B&TI (Business and Technology 

Industries) subdistrict, approximately 5 acres, per attached map. 
 
Staff Comment:  This request will provide for more appropriate reuse of existing structures 
and/or lands adjacent to the R-AR (Aviation-Related) subdistrict and provides an extension of the 
existing R-B&TI subdistrict. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 

INCORPORATED 1739 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 

 

ANNA M. BREINICH, AICP PHONE: 207-725-6660 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FAX: 207-725-6663 



3. Amend Appendix III, Section A-III.6, Use Table for the Land Use Districts to include new 
Note 4 and indicate applicable uses in R-PO as follows:  
 
Notes:  4 Allowed only as an interim use further restricted to wholly internal operations within 
buildings existing prior to [ordinance amendment effective date], until such time as said buildings 
are demolished or for a time period not to exceed five years from the effective date, which comes 
first.  One  five –year extension may be requested. 
 
Uses Industry Class I and Industry Class II shall be amended from prohibited uses to permitted 
uses in R-PO subdistrict with notation 4 applied (proposed revised table attached). 
 
Staff Comment:  Town staff has worked with MRRA in developing this concept with the 
understanding that the proposed interim uses would be restricted to internal operations within 
existing structures, until such time that the buildings are demolished or for no more than five (5) 
years, whichever comes first.  MRRA could request a five-year extension if market conditions do 
not improve.  
 

4. Amend Appendix III, Section A-III.6, Use Table for the Land Use Districts to add two new 
uses, Light Industry Use and Special Event Use, as proposed on attached table.  
 
Staff Comment:    Staff is in agreement with these additions as noted.   

 
5. Amend Appendix III to add new Section A-III.11 Definitions, as follows: 

 
A-III.11 Definitions 
 
Light Industry Use:  A use engaged in research and development activities, the processing, 
fabricating, assembly, disassembly or treatment of finished or semi-finished products from 
previously prepared material, which activities are wholly conducted in an enclosed building. 
 
Special Event Use:  A temporary outdoor or indoor activity that extends beyond the normal uses 
and standards allowed by the zoning ordinance, sponsored by a for-profit, non-profit or 
government entity, lasting 14 consecutive calendar days or less for each event held.  Activities 
include, but are not limited to, auto, boat and air shows, trade shows, fairs, exhibitions, or other 
assembly-type event for 200 or more people.   
 
Staff Comment:  At this time, both of the above uses would be new additions to the Brunswick 
Zoning Ordinance, therefore necessitating the inclusion of zoning definitions applicable only to 
Appendix III.   

 
The Board voted unanimously to recommend the proposed amendments as presented to Town 
Council for adoption. 
 
Staff respectfully requests Town Council to consider scheduling a public hearing to take 
comment and possible action on the recommended zoning change. 
 
I will be in attendance at the Council meeting to answer any questions. 
 
 
 



B ath  R dB ath  R d

Gu rn et R d
G u rn et R d

Harp sw e ll R d
H arp sw e ll R d

Pe rim ete r R dPe rim ete r R d

Orion S t
O rio n  S t

P e g a su s  A v
Pe g a su s  A v

Fitc h  A v
F itc h  A v

U S  R o u te  1
U S  R o u te  1

Me rri
co n

e ag
 R d

M e rri
co n

e ag
 R d

C oo m b s R d
C oo m b s R d

Neptu n e D r
N ep tu n e D r

Th o m as  P o in t R d

Th o m as  P o in t R d

Wo
odw

ard
 Po

int
 Rd

Wo
odw

ard
 Po

int
 Rd

M e
ad o

w  R
d

M e
ad o

w  R
d

P r in c e s  P o in t R d

Pr in c e s P o in t R d

Sw
am

py 
R d

Sw
am

p y 
R d

Fa r le y  R d
Fa rle y  R d

F irs t S t
F irs t S t

B oa rd  R d
B oa rd  R d

Jo rd a n Av
Jo rd a n  Av

W ild w
o od

 D r
W ild w

o od
 D r

P in e  S t
P in e  S t

H ue y  D rH ue y  D r

N ew  G u rn e t R d
N ew  G u rn e t R d

B ur ba n k Av
B ur ba n k Av

Se a h aw k Av
Se a h aw k Av

Lib
b y 

L n
L ib

b y 
L n

Pe lica n  S t
Pe lica n  S t

A  S tA  S t

Fo rre s ta l D rFo rre s ta l D r

H ic k o ry  D rH ic k o ry  D r

Fu e l F arm  R d

Fu e l F arm  R dPo lla rd  A vPo lla rd  A v

Tib be tts  D r
T ib be tts  D r

G u ad a lc a n al D r

G u ad a lc a n al D r

Bo
m b

az i
n e  

Is l
B o

m b
az i

n e  
Is l

G ar r iso n  S t
G ar riso n  S t

H aw t ho rn e  S tH aw t ho rn e  S t

Pu rin to n  R d

Pu rin to n  R d

H ero n w o o d  D r
H ero n w o o d  D r

Cha
s e L

n
C ha

s e L
n

M e
m o

ry  L
n

M e
m o

ry  L
n

C  S tC  S t

P in e fie ld s  L n
P in e fie ld s  L n

W a rd  C ir
W a rd  C ir

Blu
e H

e ro
n  R

d
B lu

e  H
e ro

n  R
d

B a l
s am

 Av
B al

s am
 Av

Lin
s co

tt W
y

Lin
s co

tt W
y

Ca
rib

ou
 Dr

Ca
rib

ou
 Dr

N o
b  H

ill  A
v

N o
b  H

ill  A
v

Lu p in e  C ir
Lu p in e  C ir

M id w ay  C ir

M idw ay  C ir

Peg
asu

s  A
v

Pe g
a su

s  A
v

R -R /O S

R -R /O S

R -A R

R -B & T I

R -B & T I

R -C M U

R -R

R -P O

R -A R

0 1,2 00 2 ,4 00 3 ,6 00 4 ,8 00 6 ,0 0060 0

Fe et

07-08-09

Town of Brunswick
Zoning Map Amendments
BNAS Reuse Land Use Districts

BNAS Reuse District Boundary
R-R/OS Recreation/Open Space
R-AR Aviation Related
R-B&TI Business & Technology Industries
R-CMU Community Mixed Use
R-PO Professional Office
R-R Residential

kmm
Polygonal Line

kmm
Polygonal Line

kmm
Callout
 R-B&TI

kmm
Callout
R-CMU

kmm
Polygonal Line



 
Proposed amended language shaded 
 
A-III.6 Use Table for the Land Use Districts 
 

Use/Land Use 
District 

R-CMU R-PO R-AR R-B&TI R-R 
R-

R&OS 

Aviation 
Operations 

X X P P X X 

Aviation Related 
Business 

X X P P X X 

Bank P P P3 X X X 

Bed and Breakfast P X X X X X 

Boarding House P X X X X X 

Business Office P P P3 P X X 

Campground X X X X X P 

Car Wash X X X X X X 

Club or Lodge P X X X X X 

College Dining 
Facility 

P X X X X X 

College Office P P X X X X 

Community 
Center 

P X X X P2 X 

Congregate-
Assisted Living 

P X X X P X 

Contractor’s 
Space 

X X P3 P X X 

Convenience Store P X X X X X 

Drive-Through P X X X X X 

Dwelling, Single 
and Two Family 

X X X X P X 

Dwelling, 3 or 
More Units 

P X X X P X 

Dwelling as Part 
of a Mixed Use 
Building  

P X X X X X 

Educational 
Facility 

P P1 P P1 X P 

Equestrian 
Facility/Stable 

X X X X X P 

Farm/Gardens X X X X X P 

Gasoline/Fuel 
Sales 

P X P3 P X X 



Use/Land Use 
District 

R-CMU R-PO R-AR R-B&TI R-R 
R-

R&OS 

Gasoline/Fuel 
Service Station 

P X X P X X 

Golf Course X X X X X P 

Greenhouse X X X P X P 

Hotel P P X X X X 

Industry Class I X P4 *P P X X 

Industry Class II X P4 *P P X X 

Industry, Light P X X X X X 

Junkyards X X X X X X 

Kennel X X X X X X 

Library or 
Museum 

P X X X X X 

Marina X X X X X X 

Marine Activities X X X X X X 

Media Studio P P1 X X X X 

Mineral 
Extraction 

X X X X X X 

Motor Vehicle 
Sales 

X X X X X X 

Motor Vehicle 
Service/Repair 

P X X P X X 

Parking Facility P P2 P P X X 

Photographers – 
Artists Studio 

P P1 X X X X 

Professional 
Office 

P P P3 P X X 

Recreation 
Facility 

P P1 X X P2 P 

Religious 
Institution 

P P X X X X 

Residence Hall P X X X X X 

Restaurant P P1 P3 X X P2 

Retail Class I P P1 P3 P2 X P2 

Retail Class II P X X X X X 

Service Business 
Class I 

P P1 P3 P X X 

Service Business 
Class II 

P P1 P3 P X X 



Use/Land Use 
District 

R-CMU R-PO R-AR R-B&TI R-R 
R-

R&OS 

Special Event P P P P X P 

Theater P X X X X X 

Veterinary Office  P X X X X P2 

Warehousing and 
Storage 

X X *P P X X 

Key:   P=”permitted use”; X=”prohibited use”; 
 “--“ = Special Permit required, see Section 701 
Notes:    1 Allowed only as part of a mixed-use building 
               2 Allowed only as an accessory use to another allowed use 
               3 Allowed only in conjunction with aviation related activities or uses 
                       4 Allowed only as an interim use and restricted to wholly internal operations within 

buildings existing prior to [ordinance amendment effective date]. Such use shall be 
allowed until such time as existing buildings are demolished or for a time period not 
to exceed five years from the effective date, whichever comes first. One five-year 
extension may be requested. 

 
*Amended 1/24/11 R 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 114 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 

Resolution Amending the 2012-13 Budget 
Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund  

to Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year (the 
“Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, through its capital improvement planning process, has identified  an 
additional project it wishes to undertake in the 2012-13 fiscal year; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 504 of the Charter of the Town of Brunswick provides a method for amending 
the Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the Budget  
at least ten days prior to the adoption of this resolution; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED: 
 
Section 1.  The sum of $174,500 is appropriated from the Town’s unassigned General Fund Balance 
for  a project entitled the School Department Facilities Master Plan - Phase II (the “Master Plan or 
Phase II” or the “Project”)).  The scope of the project is defined in a letter dated August 7, 2012 from 
PDT Architects to School Superintendent Paul Perzanoski.  The School Superintendent is authorized 
to modify the scope of work as he, at his sole discretion, deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Brunswick School Department. 
 
Section 2.  Upon a determination by the Finance Director that the project is complete or abandoned, 
any remaining balance in the project account shall lapse to the Town’s General Fund. 
 
Section 3.  Project costs shall include any and all costs determined by the Town’s Finance Director to 
be project costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
 
Section 4.  The Superintendent of Schools or his designee is authorized to execute contracts and take 
any other steps deemed necessary in order to proceed with the project.  Any expenditure to date as 
well as any other action taken by the Town of Brunswick, the Brunswick School Department, or the 
Superintendent of Schools, relating to the project, including the solicitation of proposals, or 
participation in any process that solicited proposals, as well as any subsequent negotiations or 
contracts with vendors, are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that should implementation of the Master Plan result in future 
capital expenditures, the Town’s General fund, at the Town Manager’s discretion, may be reimbursed 
from future capital projects funding, up to the full cost of the Master Plan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that while General Fund resources will fund the original 
expenditures related to the development of a Master Plan, it is expected that the Master Plan will 
result in capital expenditures to be funded in part or in whole by the issuance of debt, and that 



proceeds from the issuance of debt will be used to reimburse the General Fund for the cost of the 
Master Plan, that it is the intent of the Town Council that this Resolution shall constitute the Town’s 
declaration of official intent within the meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 15, 2012 
Public Hearing:   November 5, 2012 
Adopted by Town Council:  
 
 
O:\Finance\Budget\Budget 2012-13\Resolutions\2012-13 Budget Amendment.docx 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 19, 2012     
 
RE: Budget amendment for School Master Plan     
 
As the Council prepares to consider the proposal to amend the budget for what is being 
described as phase II of the School Master Plan, I want to provide some background 
information to assist in your decision. 
 
Background: In July 2011, the Council passed a resolution to adopt an emergency 
appropriation in the amount of $200,000 to fund what was described as Phase 1 of the 
School Department Master Plan. This project was intended to assist the School Board 
facilities committee undertake a comprehensive look at their facilities for the purpose of 
making recommendations regarding renovations and expansions. This emergency 
appropriation was one of the last of this nature as we have subsequently utilized the 
budget amendment process established in the Town Charter. This project was 
effectively completed in late spring of 2012 and the School Department is now poised 
for what is described as Phase 2. 
 
As similar to last year, the recommendation is to amend the municipal budget to provide 
the funding of Phase 2. This is distinguished from amending the School Budget. The 
primary reason for this is that if we were to amend the School Budget, it would need to 
go to referendum per State law. This would result in an additional cost of several 
thousand dollars. 
 
Regardless of which budget would be amended, the source of the funds will be from 
fund balance. It has been suggested that there is sufficient funds in the School 
Department fund balance to fund this rather that the Town’s fund balance. While that is 
true, the utilization of funds from the School’s fund balance simply means that the funds 
will not be there next year to be used to reduce the impact on the FY’14 budget. At the 
end of the day, the Town is going to have to provide this level of funding ($175,000) 
either by appropriating from the fund balance now, or next year or by increasing the tax 
commitment in next year’s budget. 
 
Phase 2: Phase 2 is to prepare the detailed design drawings for the renovations and 
expansion of Coffin School and the Junior High. It will also likely include some work to 
determine where the bus maintenance facility should be located. The consideration to 



expand and renovate Coffin school is further necessitated by the closure of the Jordan 
Acres School. I have been advised by the Superintendent that one of the significant 
factors in deciding to close Jordan Acres is the cost of redundant staff (Principal, 
support staff, specialists etc). This has been identified to be $700,000 per year. So, if 
Jordan Acres is renovated and reopened, the School Department will need and 
additional $800,000 in personnel and operating costs. 
 
The consequence of closing JA certainly escalates the need to renovate and expand 
Coffin sooner than not.  
 
Summary: The Council is being asked to amend the budget utilizing the process 
outlined in the Town Charter, rather than adopting an emergency appropriation. The 
recommendation is to amend the municipal budget rather than the school budget in 
order to avoid a referendum and to avoid the additional cost. It is of no significance 
which budget is amended as it will be a matter of the Town funding either this phase or 
funding next year’s school budget in this amount if the School Department were to fund 
Phase 2. The drawings and plans are necessary particularly due to the impact of closing 
Jordan Acres School. Closing Jordan Acres results in avoiding annual operating 
increase of $800,000. 
 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

OFFICE OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR 
28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

TELEPHONE      207-725-6652 

FAX                      207-725-4107 

 

www.brunswickme.org/departments/finance 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Gary Brown 
  Town Manager 
 
FROM:  John Eldridge 
  Finance Director 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2012 
 
RE:  School Department Master Plan 
 
 
On July 11, 2011, the Town Council adopted a resolution that appropriated up to $200,000 to fund the 
development of a School Master Plan.  A copy of that resolution is attached.   
 
As of June 30, 2012, the School Department had completed Phase I of the Plan.  As there was no contract 
in place for a subsequent planning phase, the balance of $69,886.59 was lapsed to the Town’s General 
Fund balance.   
 
The School Department sought proposals for a second phase of the planning process and in August 2012 
reached an agreement with PDT Architects regarding a scope of work.  A copy of PDT’s proposal is 
attached.  PDT estimates that the maximum cost of the proposed scope of work is $174,500.  The budget 
amendment resolution for Phase II appropriates $174,500 from the Town’s General Fund balance for that 
work.  Should Phase II result in costs lower than budgeted, the remaining appropriation would be lapsed 
back to the fund balance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
A Resolution Authorizing an Emergency Appropriation and Expenditure of up to $200,000 

from Available Unassigned General Fund Revenues  
In Order to Fund a Master Plan for the Brunswick School Department 

 
 
WHEREAS, Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) through its School Department (the “Department”) has 
recently completed construction of the Harriet Beecher Elementary School, set to open in 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the planning for the development of the Harriet Beecher Stowe School, the 
Department also identified the need for renovation and expansion of the Jordan Acres Elementary School 
and the Robert P.T. Coffin Elementary School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has recently closed two elementary schools, the Longfellow School and the 
Hawthorne School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has temporarily closed the Jordan Acres School for the 2011-12 and 2012-
13 school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, previous planning by the Department has also identified the need for expansion and 
renovation of the Brunswick Junior High School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the closure of the Naval Air Station, Brunswick has resulted in a decline in student 
enrollment; and 
 
WHEREAS, in light of these events, the Department believes it is necessary to re-evaluate its building 
and programming needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has proposed the development of a Master Plan to guide it with its building 
and programming needs and has estimated the cost of preparing the plan to be $200,000 (the “Master 
Plan” or “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department believes the decline in student enrollment and the temporary closure of the 
Jordan Acres School may present it with an opportunity to complete the Plan and implement its 
recommendations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted the first year, 2011-12, of a capital 
improvement program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 – 2016 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Master Plan is identified in the CIP and scheduled for 2011-12; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP has identified school construction projects in years 2012-15 to be funded with 
general obligation bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department does not have funds budgeted for the Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has determined that the need to fund the costs associated with the 
Master Plan is an emergency within the meaning of section 510 of the Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has recommended that up to $200,000 be appropriated from available 
unassigned General Fund revenues in order to complete the Master Plan; and 
 



 

WHEREAS, the Town Council concurs that the need to appropriate up to $200,000 towards the Master 
Plan is an emergency within the meaning of section 510 of the Charter; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Manager or Department be authorized to 
execute any and all agreements determined, in the Town Manager’s or Department’s judgment, to be in 
the best interest of the Town of Brunswick in order to complete the Master Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town appropriates and authorizes the expenditure of up to 
$200,000 from available unassigned General Fund revenues to accomplish the Master Plan; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town is authorized to establish a capital projects account to 
record revenues and expenditures and other financial information related to the development of the 
Master Plan; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any actions taken to date by the Town Manager or Department in 
connection with the development and completion of the Master Plan are hereby ratified, confirmed, and 
approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that should implementation of the Master Plan result in future capital 
expenditures, the Town’s General fund, at the Town Manager’s discretion, may be reimbursed from 
future capital projects funding, up to the full cost of the Master Plan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that while General Fund resources will fund the original expenditures 
related to the development of the Master Plan, it is expected that the Master Plan will result in capital 
expenditures to be funded in part or in whole by the issuance of debt, and that proceeds from the issuance 
of debt will be used to reimburse the General Fund for the cost of the Master Plan, that it is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Resolution shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council – July 11, 2011 
 
Adopted by Town Council – July 11, 2011 
 
 
O:\Finance\Resolutions\School Master Plan.docx 













 
 

 
ITEM 115 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 30, 2012    
 
RE:  McKeen Street Acceptance    
 
This is phase 3 of the street acceptance of the streets in the former Navy Family 
Housing off McKeen Street. The situation is exactly the same as the previous meeting 
and staff is recommending conditional approval. 
 
Affordable Mid-Coast Housing is requesting the Brunswick Town Council accept certain 
additional streets and sections of streets that are located in what was previously the 
Navy Housing on McKeen Street. 
 
The reconstruction of the streets has been nearly completed and the remaining work 
will likely be finished either by the Council meeting or shortly afterwards. The 
reconstruction work has been reviewed by John Foster and it meets the requirements of 
the Street acceptance ordinance. There are some technical documents that remain to 
be reviewed (survey descriptions, deeds etc) and it is our understanding that these will 
also be completed in a matter of days. 
 
It is the staff recommendation that the Council conditionally accept these streets subject 
to the review and approval by the Town Engineer that all work is completed to meet the 
requirements of the Town ordinance. This recommendation is based in part due to the 
three week lag time before the next Council meeting. The acceptance of these streets 
is also necessary to facilitate the next round of sales of some of the homes. 

 
 .  

 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 116 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 29, 2012    
 
RE: Excise Tax Exemption Ordinance      
 
In 2011 the Legislature passed a law that authorizes local municipalities to adopt an 
ordinance that exempts active duty military personnel from paying excise tax on motor 
vehicles. A copy of that statue is attached to this memo. 
 
Council Chair King and Councilor Watson have sponsored the agenda item to set a 
public hearing to adopt this ordinance in Brunswick. A DRAFT of the ordinance is also 
attached. 
 
I have discussed the possible impact of this with the Finance Department. We do not 
have the ability to identify the individuals that may qualify for this benefit, but an 
educated estimate is that the impact will be less than $5,000. 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 

 
 

Municipality of Brunswick, Maine 
 

ORDINANCE 
EXEMPTING ELIGIBLE ACTIVE DUTY MILITARY PERSONNEL FROM 

VEHICLE EXCISE TAX 
 
Section 1. Authority. 
 
This ordinance is enacted pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 1483-A, which expressly authorizes such 
ordinances. 
 
Section 2.  Excise tax exemption; qualifications. 
 
Vehicles owned by a resident of this municipality who is on active duty serving in the United 
States Armed Forces and who is either permanently stationed at a military or naval post, 
station or base outside this State or deployed for military service for a period of more than 180 
days and who desires to register that resident’s vehicle(s) in this State are hereby exempted 
from the annual excise tax imposed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 1482. 
 
To apply for this exemption, the resident must present to the municipal excise tax collector 
certification from the commander of the resident’s post, station or base, or from the 
commander’s designated agent, that the resident is permanently stationed at that post, station 
or base or is deployed for military service for a period of more than 180 days. 
 
For purposes of this section, “United States Armed Forces” includes the National Guard and 
the Reserves of the United States Armed Forces. 
 
For purposes of this section, “deployed for military service” has the same meaning as in 26 
M.R.S.A. § 814(1)(A). 
 
For purposes of this section, “vehicle” has the same meaning as in 36 M.R.S.A. § 1481(5) and 
does not include any snowmobiles as defined in 12 M.R.S.A. § 13001. 
 
Section 3.  Effective date; duration. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty days after its adoption by the Town Council and shall 
remain in effect unless and until it or 36 M.R.S.A. § 1483-A is repealed.  



  |  1

36 §1483-A. LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTION FOR
RESIDENTS PERMANENTLY STATIONED OR DEPLOYED

FOR MILITARY SERVICE OUTSIDE OF THE STATE

36 §1483-A. LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTION FOR RESIDENTS PERMANENTLY
STATIONED OR DEPLOYED FOR MILITARY SERVICE OUTSIDE OF THE
STATE

A municipality may by ordinance exempt from the annual excise tax imposed pursuant to section 1482
vehicles owned by a resident who is on active duty serving in the United States Armed Forces and who is
either permanently stationed at a military or naval post, station or base outside this State or deployed for
military service for a period of more than 180 days who desires to register that resident's vehicle in this State.
To apply for the exemption, the resident must present to a designated municipal official certification from
the commander of the resident's post, station or base, or from the commander's designated agent, that the
resident is permanently stationed at that post, station or base or is deployed for military service for a period of
more than 180 days. For purposes of this section, "United States Armed Forces" includes the National Guard
and the Reserves of the United States Armed Forces. For purposes of this section, "deployed for military
service" has the same meaning as in Title 26, section 814, subsection 1, paragraph A. [2011, c. 313,
§1 (NEW);  2011, c. 313, §2 (AFF).]

SECTION HISTORY
2011, c. 313, §1 (NEW).  2011, c. 313, §2 (AFF).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish
this material, we require that you include the following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this
publication reflects changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 125th Maine Legislature, is current

through September 1, 2012, and is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially
certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory
publication you may produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who
is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or
interpretation of Maine law to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



 
 

 
ITEM 117 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 29, 2012 
 
RE: Changes to General Assistance Ordinance         
 
Council is being asked to set a public hearing on proposed changes to the General 
Assistance Ordinance. This is the typical annual exercise that all Towns go through as 
some of the allowable levels of assistance are modified. This is different than the 
changes that Council acted on last spring. Those were changes that were the result of 
structural changes in the law. 
 
The proposed change pertains to the level of assistance for housing.  
 
  
 

 .  
 
 






	nov 5 2012 agd.pdf
	Binder1
	mr a no
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr c bike letter_20121029123208
	112 yes
	112 aki app_20121029123445
	113 yes
	113 and 114 nov 5 2012 school study and mrra zoning
	113 Brunswick Landing rezoning TC memo 101012
	113 MapAmendmentsNEW
	113 MRRA Zoning Amendment Table
	114 yes
	114 October 19 memo regarding phase 2
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	114 a School Master Plan Memo with attachments
	114 b 2012-13 Budget Amendment
	115 yes
	115 October 30  memo regarding McKeen St road acceptance
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	116 yes
	116 October 29 memo regarding Excise Tax ordinance
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	116 Excise Tax Ordinance _2_
	116 title36sec1483-A
	117 yes
	117 October 30 memo regarding GA increases
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	117 ga max_20121029123302
	ca a yes
	ca a oct 15 2012 min
	ca b yes
	ca b beano_20121029123357




